
WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 .

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMISSION  925 DILLINGHAM BOULEVARD, SUITE 160  HONOLULU, HAWAII, 96817

PHONE (808) 768-3710  FAX (808) 768-3711  INTERNET: http://www.honolulu.gov/nco

DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
WAIANAE DISTRICT PARK – MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER – Chair Poe called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. A quorum was established with seven (7)
Board members present. Note – This nine (9) member Board requires five (5) members to establish a quorum and
to take official Board action.

Board Members Present – Calvin Endo, Josiah Jury, Tim Riley, Sharlette Poe, Johnnie Mae Perry, Pieter Meinster,
Tammy Cabral (arrived at 7:00 p.m.), and Kaukaohu Wahilani.

Board Members Absent – Joseph Simpliciano.

Guests: Lieutenant Kent Fernandez, Officer Kym Johnson (Honolulu Police Department-HPD), Marc Alexander
(Executive Director, Office of Housing (HOU) Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s Representative), Louis Galdeira
(Councilmember Kymberly Pine’s Office), William Aila (Director, Department of Hawaiian Homelands (DHHL)
Governor David Ige’s Representative), Lieutenant Colonel Rick Turner (US Army Garrison), Cynthia Rezentes,
Elizabeth Dixon (Nanakuli-Maili Neighborhood Board No. 36), Ed Burke (AARP & Representative Cedric Gates’
Office), Marshall Ando (Hawaii Department of Transportation-HDOT), Mellissa White, Jared Cheng (SSFM), Dean
Masuno (Eurus Energy), Ben Williams (Hawaii Bicycle Racing Association - HBRA), Rich Levine, Meleana Kamai,
Kathleen Davenport, Melva Aila, Richard Landford, Michael Eli, Keoki Whitehead, Alvin Awo, Kapua Keliikoa-
Kamai, Robin Hermance, James Manaku Sr., Jo Jordan, Georgie Navarro, Daniel Dixon, Sonya Roundtree, Darrian
Texeira-Tanty, Alan Allosada, San Iokia, Eric Hudson, Pam Briece, Alex Puou, Robin McDonald, Pua Burgess
(Residents and Guests), Naomi Hanohano (Neighborhood Assistant).

Pu Kani and Pule: Wahilani blew the Pu and Endo led the Pule

PUBLIC SAFETY, ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS & COMMUNITY REPORTS:

Honolulu Fire Department (HFD): HFD was not present.

Honolulu Police Department (HPD): Lieutenant Fernandez and Officer Johnson reported the following Waianae
statistics:

 November 2019 Statistics: There were 11 motor vehicle thefts, 25 burglaries, 68 thefts, and 19 unauthorized
entries into motor vehicles (UEMV). There was a total of 2283 calls for service for Waianae.

Questions, comments, concerns:
1. Guitar Thefts: Board member Perry asked if HPD had any updates regarding the theft of musician Cyril

Pahinui’s Guitars. Lieutenant Fernandez noted he does not have any information.
2. Flag Ordinance: Board member Perry asked would size be the reason that a Hawaiian flag be cited.

Lieutenant Fernandez noted that size could be a reason but his officers can cite anything that could be an
obstruction to other drivers such as a canoe. Lieutenant Fernandez noted that HPD cites other flags also.

3. Fire behind Makaha Surfside Condominium: Resident Pam Briece asked if HPD had any information about
a recent fire behind her condominium. Lieutenant Fernandez noted he does not have any information about
that fire and HFD makes the determination for the cause of a fire.

Board of Water Supply (BWS): Chris Sugimoto was not present due to illness. No report available at the meeting.

United States Army Garrison: Lieutenant Colonel Rick Turner reported the following:
 Makua Access: The access days for December 2019 is Saturday, December 7, 2019 and Monday,

December 30, 2019.
 Christmas Parade: The Army enjoyed participating in the Annual Waianae Christmas Parade.
 Happy Holidays: Dennis Drake and the US Army Garrison wishes everyone a Very Happy Holidays!

United States Navy: Victor Flint of Naval Facilities (NAVFAC) was not present. Report submitted as follows:
 Loko Pa'aiau: The restoration efforts continues and the Navy is always looking for volunteers. For more



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 10

information, please call Jeff Panaleo at 471-1171.
 Red Hill: On Friday November 15, 2019, two (2) Waianae Coast Neighborhood Board members (WCNB)

were hosted on a tour of Red Hill where they were able to learn the history of the tanks and tunnels. On
Tuesday, November 19, 2019 there was a public meeting at Moanalua Elementary School hosted by
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Department of Health (DOH) which over 350 people
showed up. The purpose was to get public feedback about Red Hill which much of the comments were
negative but there were some positive comments as well. The negative perceptions were mostly what
people felt or feared but the DOH, EPA and Navy officials were there to answer questions & give updates.
Naval engineering decisions are based on facts not fear, so for accurate information on Red Hill or any
other Navy Project, Please ask the Navy. In conclusion, there are no leaks, no breaks and the water remains
clean and safe and the Navy intends to keep it that way.

 Ownership: Board member Wahilani asked who owns the land at Kuaokala. The State of Hawaii owns the
land which much of it is leased to the US Government. Flint has copies of the Tax Map Keys (TMK) that
shows the land ownership and is ready to be picked up.

Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s Representative: Office of Housing (HOU) Director Marc Alexander read the report:
 Waianae Coast Emergency Access Road (WCEAR): Resident Manaku asked who has the authority to open

the road in an emergency situation noting there seems to be some confusion between departments.
Department of Transportation Services (DTS) response: The WCEAR is not under DTS jurisdiction. The
Department of Emergency Management (DEM) makes the determination on emergency. The DEM and
HPD have keys to gate. HPD response: This topic has been discussed at length over and over again.
Currently the District 8 (Ewa/Kapolei/Waianae) commander has the authority to open up the gate in
emergency and national disaster type situations. There are no plans in place to open up the gates due to
road closures caused by incidents such as motor vehicle collisions or other roadwork being done in the
area. If the gate is to be opened, there are numerous areas along the route that require officers to be
present for safety reasons. The district may not be able to provide such staffing, especially if a critical
incident is occurring. The roadway is not allowed to be opened and left unstaffed until traffic is flowing
normal again. DEM response: HPD and DEM can make the determination of an emergency that requires
the opening of the locked portions of the Waianae Coast Emergency Access Road.

 Letter from Pokai Bay NSW; Pokai Bay Street resident and NSW member Sue noted a letter that she drafted
requesting that the City: 1) Permanently remove the Pokai Bay street encampments and provide housing
in sanctioned campgrounds away from residential areas and schools. 2) Enforce no loitering or sleeping in
cars along Pokai Bay Street from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 3) Increase protection of the sand dunes and
beach vegetation from vehicles by installing stronger, more attractive barriers. 4) Restore the Pokai Bay
street beachfront and sanitize the heavily used encampment area. 5) Maintain the restrooms, grass lawns
and trees along Pokai Bay Street. HPD response for items #1 and 2: One of the current issues the HPD is
facing in regards to homeless individuals is housing in adequate areas and we do not have control over the
development or location of such housing areas. The District 8 (Ewa/Kapolei/Waianae) Community Policing
Team (CPT) and HPD’s Community Outreach Unit have been working continuously with Kealahou Social
Workers to assist in finding housing and addressing the concerns that may be causing individuals to remain
at Pokai Bay. The District 8 Parks Detail also continues to address and issue citations to those who are
there illegally. Due to current laws, there are procedures that need to be followed that require large planning
and organization in removing individuals during park closures. It is illegal to sleep in a vehicle in a public
area between the hours of 10:00 pm to 6:00 a.m. and Officers will take enforcement action when violations
are observed. The community is encouraged to call 911 to report such incidents as this would result in a
more expeditious response. The Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) provides the following
responses to Items # 3, 4, and 5: DPR does not have an inventory of vehicles barriers, but will place barriers,
usually concrete barricades or large rocks, in this area as they become available. Area staff removes all
illegal items and trash during a Stored Property Ordinance (SPO) enforcement and the staff maintains the
park facilities daily. HOU response: Executive Director Alexander was able to update Sue and other
community members of the recent outreach efforts that have taken place in their community. On
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 a coordinated Health, Efficiency, Long-Term Partnerships (HELP)
interagency outreach was conducted in the Waianae community. This coordinated effort resulted in 16
previously homeless individuals accepting outreach and shelter services, and getting off of the street. HOU
also provided the following update from DPR: Park closure will be the portion of Lualualei Beach Park
known as Lualualei 2. This area of the park extends from Pokai Bay Beach Park along Pokai Bay Street
until Farrington Highway. The closure will be from Monday, November 25, 2019 to Monday, December 16,
2019. The City Department of Facility Maintenance (DFM) will be supporting this effort beginning Monday,
November 25, 2019. HOU appreciate the anticipated community support of these efforts, which are a



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 10

response to requests from community members and the assessment of DPR staff.
 Water leak: Resident Theresa Kuehu requested assistance with a water leak at 87-204 Kulaaupuni Street.

BWS response: This parcel is private property and private piping. It would be at the owner’s expense to
repair. Should there be any questions, please contact Mike Fuke, Program Administrator at 748-5505.

 Pamphlet: Director Alexander distributed the Office of Housing’s pamphlet – Addressing Homelessness
Together and noted:

o The Greatest Need – Housing: Between 2017 and 2018, the City and County of Honolulu efforts
have resulted in providing 2,401 total affordable housing units. Kahauiki Village upon completion
will house approximately 600 formerly homeless individuals in families. In addition, the City and
County of Honolulu is on schedule to provide over 1,150 additional housing units. Housing First is
a nationally recognized best practice proven to be most effective in assisting people experiencing
chronic homelessness.

o We Can Address Unsheltered Homelessness Together: The On-Going Successes of the Punawai
Rest Stop, Honolulu Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD), HELP and the Mayors’
Challenge which has helped many chronically homeless individuals to find housing and New
Innovative Programs such as Homeless Outreach and Navigation for Unsheltered Persons
(HONU), Homeless Resource Center at Iwilei, The Outreach Navigation Program and the Landlord
Engagement Program which help many more.

o Data-Driven and Evidence Based: The homeless family individuals population declined by 42%
from 2015-2019. From 2017-2019 the overall homeless population declined by 10%. Goals are set
to measure progress.

Questions, comments, concerns:
1. Stamp out and Refrain: Board member Perry noted that homelessness and poverty needs to be “stamped

out” and the Mauna Kea protectors must abstain from buying alcohol and tobacco.
2. Bus Incident: Board member Perry noted an incident where the bus that she was riding had a flat tire and

the Bus Company sent a bus quickly so the passengers could get on their way.
3. Another Bus Incident: Board member Perry referred to Bill 7 (2013) that relates to the “Nuisance on public

sidewalks” ordinance and noted that the bus shelter at the Alapai Transit Station does not block the sun in
the afternoon when bus riders are waiting for their busses so they put markers such as pens or umbrellas
to mark their place in line while they seek shade. Perry noted that a bus company employee went out on
Monday, November 25, 2019 after 3:00 p.m. to confiscate the items that the Bus No. 93 and 91 riders left
as markers noting Bill 7. Perry noted that this practice must stop because the City wants people to ride the
bus and the riders felt harassed by this employee. Perry also noted that the confiscated items were never
returned to the bus riders.

4. Questioning the numbers: Board member Meinster noted that the Point in Time Count that was shared at
a previous meeting did not account for the homeless fatalities and questioned what is the source of
numbers provided in the pamphlet that shows a reduction in homeless people and if there is a way to
adjust the numbers taking in account the fatalities. Director Alexander noted that all data is on the office of
housing website’s dashboard and a separate analysis was done taking in account homeless fatalities done
by the City’s Medical Examiner.

5. Affordable Housing: Board member Meinster noted a question that he brought up previously about
affordable housing that he feels should be kept in perpetuity and not be allowed to be sold for a profit so
many years later. Meinster also asked about the Singapore Model for affordable housing which is being
considered for Hawaii. Director Alexander noted that the City funds some affordable housing units which
specifically targets the homeless and those units are kept in perpetuity but the City also funds other units
that do have time limits depending on the developer and type of development noting that information is
also available on the City’s housing website. Director Alexander also noted that Singapore model called
“Aloha Homes” that has been working through the State legislature and workshops has been held but the
City focuses more on affordable rental housing.

7:00 p.m. Board member Cabral arrived to the meeting. There are eight (8) Board members in attendance.

6. Raw Data: Board member Jury asked if the pamphlet notes the raw data and if it does not, is there a way
to get the raw data noting that he wants to see the actual numbers of how many were helped and where
the reduction in numbers come from. Director Alexander noted that the information on the pamphlet is from
Partners in Care which does the point in time count each year but anyone can go the housing website’s
dashboard. Director Alexander also noted that they use data from Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
and can only offer data that the City and County of Honolulu owns.

7. Local: Board member Perry noted that the government always advocates the public to “buy local” but



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 10

allows developers from out of state to come to Hawaii to build developments on a private/public partnership
which is still funded by taxpayers and feels that the local residents voices “does not matter” in government
decisions. Director Alexander noted that the City has a preference for local developers and most projects
are locally based but may have an office out of state but sometimes the size of the project is too large so
they have to involve outside developers.

8. By Area: Ed Burke noted that the pamphlet that was distributed provided homeless numbers for the whole
state and asked if the statistics could be broken down by areas because it seems like Waianae has seen
an increase in homelessness. Director Alexander noted the numbers in the pamphlet is for Oahu only and
the housing website has the numbers broken down and the pamphlet is just a summary of the numbers.

9. Connectivity: Resident Manaku expressed his concern with the lack of connectivity along the leeward coast
noting that there are many incidents that happens on Farrington Highway which blocks the road and there
is no agency who will take the responsibility to open the WCEAR. Manaku questioned why was so much
money spent to build the road that is not being used and what can be done to correct the problem.

10. Number of Locally Born Homeless: Resident Eli asked what the number is of homeless that was born in
Hawaii noting that it seems that many of the homeless is from out of state. Director Alexander noted that
most of the homeless is Hawaiian or part Hawaiian and less than seven (7) percent of the homeless helped
in 2018 were nonresidents. The largest group of homeless has been in Hawaii 20 years or longer. Director
Alexander also reminded the audience that part of the US Constitution is a citizen is free to move wherever
they desire and it is a myth that other states are sending their homeless to Hawaii.

11. Veterans Resource Center Needed: Resident Alan Allosada noted his military service and expressed his
concern that there many empty offices in the Waianae and Nanakuli Shopping Centers and there is no
resource center for the many homeless veterans along the leeward coast. Allosada noted that many
veterans are not able to access their benefits because they lack the identification cards or documents
needed and have no way to obtain those items. Director Alexander noted that there is a resource center
for veterans in Kalaeloa because when they did the last count, most of the veterans were centered in
Kalaeloa and Honolulu. Director Alexander noted that he will pass the request to the appropriate agencies
noting that approximately 100 veterans are chronically homeless and it is a “scandal” that should not be
happening.

12. Medication Concern: Resident Robin Hermance noted that she spoke to several case workers that works
with veterans and was told that the State and Federal governments are taking medication away from the
veterans. Hermance noted that the State and Federal governments are pushing the responsibility to each
other and the veterans are not getting the help they need. Director Alexander asked Hermance if he could
get more information so he could follow up on this concern.

13. Kauhale: Board member Endo noted a groundbreaking for a homeless project in Kalaeloa and had a few
questions about it. Director Alexander noted that it is a State project and does not have any information
about the project.

14. No Response: Board member Wahilani referred to the wind turbines that are being built in Kahuku which
is not wanted in the community and noted that 25 students and four (4) teachers from Kahuku Elementary
School went to the see Mayor Caldwell about the issue who would not meet with the students. Wahilani
noted that 206 people were arrested in protest of the turbines and asked when “enough is enough” also
expressing his concern of the proposed Palehua project. Wahilani also noted health concerns of industrial
wind turbines being so close to schools, farms and residences. Director Alexander noted this is not in his
purview but noted that Mayor Caldwell always tries to engage the public in matters that affect the
community. Director Alexander also noted that he was at Honolulu Hale the day the students were there
and knows that Mayor Caldwell had a very full schedule that day.

15. Raw Data: Resident Cathy Alana referred to Board member Jury’s inquiry regarding raw data and noted
that many veterans do not identify themselves as such because they are afraid of the government and
some veterans do not “fit the profile”. Alana noted that she does pro bono work in the community and the
enrollment period to apply for benefits is still open and that is one way that the veterans can get medication.

16. Resources: Resident Darrian Texeira-Tanty noted that he was a student at the University of Hawaii and
there is a large problem of homelessness on Oahu and the laws are targeted to criminalize the homeless
such as the “Sit/Lie” and “Park Closure” Laws. Director Alexander noted that his office works with the
university to obtain data and would be interested in any data that Texeira-Tanty might have and the laws
are not targeted against the homeless but is designed to keep areas open and available to the public.

Councilmember Kymberly Pine: Louis Galdeira distributed a newsletter and reported:
 Contact: Galdeira noted his contact information on the newsletter.
 Letter: Galdeira read Councilmember Pine’s letter to the community.



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 10

Questions, comments, concerns:
1. Three (3) Comments: Board member Perry again noted that she wants to see government stamp out

poverty, the Mauna Kea protectors abstain from buying alcohol and tobacco and referred to Bill 7 and the
incident at the Alapai Transit Center.

2. Bill 40: Chair Poe noted Bill 40 which will ban single use plastics if it passes and asked if there is data of
how it would affect small businesses and when will it go into effect. Chair Poe also asked if the ban would
exempt mainland companies also sharing her concern about local businesses not being able to obtain
affordable suitable substitutes for the single use plastic. Galdeira noted that Councilmembers Waters and
Manahan each has a version of the bill which will be discussed at the next Full Council meeting and still
has time to be amended which may address the question of how the ban would affect small businesses.
Galdeira also noted that the bill if passed will take effect on Thursday, January 1, 2021.

3. Toxic Soil Concern: Board member Endo noted that Councilmember Pine’s Newsletter stated that she
would not allow the City to dump toxic soil from Kalihi to be dumped along the Waianae Coast but
questioned how she could make that statement noting the PVT Dump is the only place on Oahu that accepts
toxic materials. Endo also noted the case of a whistle blower who reported illegal dumping of toxic materials
in Waianae Valley. Galdeira noted that the only two (2) options for the toxic soil is at the landfill or PVT
which are both on the Waianae Coast but Councilmember Pine does not want it dumped in Waianae.

4. No Taxpayer money: Board member Perry noted that taxpayers should not have to pay for the removal of
the toxic soil in Kalihi.

BOARD BUSINESS:

Approval of Tuesday, November 5, 2019 Minutes – Riley moved and Meinster seconded the motion to
approve the Tuesday, November 5, 2019 regular meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed
unanimously by a vote of 8-0-0 (Aye: Cabral, Endo, Jury, Meinster, Poe, Riley, Wahilani and Perry; Nay: None;
Abstain: None).

Approval of Tuesday, December 3, 2019 Agenda – Cabral moved and Riley seconded the motion to accept
the Tuesday, December 3, 2019 Agenda as amended. The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 8-0-0
(Aye: Endo, Meinster, Cabral, Jury, Riley, Poe, Wahilani and Perry; Nay: None; Abstain: None).

Amendment: To remove item 7.1 from the agenda. Mr. Lapilio is not able to attend tonight’s meeting.

Treasurer’s Report – Endo reported a balance of $617.84.

Reports of Members’ Attendance at Other Meetings – Board members Riley, Poe, and Cabral attended the Region
8 Democratic Party meeting noting that Chair Poe attended representing the US Census Bureau. Board members
Riley, Meinster and Wahilani attended a meeting at the Waianae Coast Comprehensive Health Center (WCCHC)
as private residents. Board member Meinster reported that he attended the 96792 Climate Change Meeting.

Awareness and Recommendation of Action for Summer Fun 2020 Funding – Chair Poe noted that she distributed
a handout to Board members she just obtained prior to the meeting and wanted to put this on the agenda to have
the Board start pushing the administration to release the funds for the summer fun programs by the middle of March
2020 so DPR can advertise the program, hire needed help and schedule activities needed to support the program.
Chair Poe noted that the proposed program fees has gone up for 2020 and the amount of funding has gone down
so she wants to get an early start to request the funding from the City. Chair Poe noted that she is putting this issue
on the Board’s radar and will propose a resolution be adopted at the Tuesday, January 7, 2020 Board meeting.
Board member Perry asked and Chair Poe noted that the handout was not distributed to Councilmember Pine yet.

Request to Restructure the Agriculture and Intergovernmental Affairs (AIA) and Parks Land and Natural Resources
(PLNR) Committees: Chair Poe noted that PLNR committee Co-Chairs Jury and Simpliciano requested to have the
Agriculture part of the AIA to be part of the PLNR and also requested that the Intergovernmental Affairs committee
be dissolved noting that the Board as a whole already functions in that capacity.

Poe moved and Riley seconded the motion to take Agriculture from the AIA committee and add it to the
PLNR committee and dissolve the Intergovernmental Affairs part of the committee. The motion passed
unanimously by a vote of 8-0-0 (Aye: Endo, Meinster, Cabral, Jury, Riley, Poe, Wahilani and Perry; Nay: None;
Abstain: None).



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 10

RESIDENTS/COMMUNITY CONCERNS:
1. Raised Crosswalks Concern: Resident Briece noted her concern with the raised crosswalks on Farrington

Highway which she requested something be put in the area that reminds drivers that they are approaching
the crosswalks when the driver may be focused on the students walking in the area. Chair Poe noted that
HDOT is present who can take back the residents’ concerns.

2. Bike Race: Ben Williams noted he represents the Hawaii Bicycle Racing Association (HBRA) who would
like to have their annual Makaha Time Trial Race and asked the Board’s blessing. Williams noted that last
year’s ride had 70 participants with 20 from Waianae and wants to reach out to get more community
involvement. Chair Poe asked when the race is, where and how long the route is, what the entry fee is and
what is the youngest age who can participate. Williams noted that the race will be held on Saturday,
February 22, 2020, route is six (6) miles long each way and starts from Keawaula Beach goes to Makaha
and loops back so it is for a total of 12 miles, the entry fee is $50.00 for non-residents of Waianae but there
is no fee for residents of 96792 and the youngest age to participate is seven (7) years old.

3. Meeting: Resident Allosada noted that he is a lifetime member of the Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW) that
do meet at Waianae Rest Camp every second Wednesday of the month at 6:00 p.m. Allosada noted that
they are a resource that veterans can come and talk about their experiences with others who understand.
Allosada noted that his phone number is 808-277-0087 and also noted that he enjoyed participating in the
Waianae Christmas Parade along with other veteran associations.

4. Road Concern: Resident Manaku noted his concern again with the WCEAR and also noted that he
observed that many rocks at the Solar Farm are being taken out of the community. Manaku also noted his
concern with developers coming to Waianae and selling off the land to non-residents and questioned why
the zoning laws are not being followed.

5. Puuhonua O Waianae Update: James Pakele noted that the Puuhonua will be doing a presentation at the
next Waianae Housing committee meeting and will be taking questions at that time.

6. Homeless Concern: Resident Eli noted his concern with a homeless camp in the Kaupuni Stream noting
that the Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) and HPD needs to work together because
there are stolen cars and illegal activities.

7. Ohikilolo Ranch Concern: Resident Eli noted his concern with the owner of Ohikilolo Ranch blocking the
road which is the access into the ranch.

8. Kaala Homes: Resident Eli noted his concern with a plan by Kaala homes to build houses near the WCCHC
and feels that the developer should appear in front the Waianae Board to let the community know what is
being planned. Eli noted that there are many native Hawaiians waiting for homes.

9. Community Clean Ups: Resident Navarro noted an improvement on Paakea Road after the community
clean ups and there are now boulders put in place to prevent any more illegal dumping. Navarro noted that
there are other areas that need to be cleaned up again such as Waianae Valley Road where people are
illegally dumping cars and other trash. Navarro also noted Kaupuni Stream that does have a homeless
encampment which has taken over the stream and she asked for community volunteers to go and help
clean up the stream. Navarro also noted that some of the homeless are already planting food for their use
and the community could work together to help clean the area and plant more food to benefit more of the
community.

10. Volunteers Needed: Resident Eli noted that he got a permit from the Department of Forestry and Wildlife
(DOFAW) to clean the area and also asked for volunteers that might be interested to help him.

11. O’Reilly’s: Resident Eli noted that O’Reilly’s Auto Parts will be opening in Makaha Marketplace which closed
down three (3) businesses.

12. Comments: Board member Perry again restated her concern about stamping out poverty, Mauna Kea
protectors to abstain from purchasing alcohol and tobacco, the concern about the bus stop company
harassing bus riders by removing their property, economic segregation and that the community is losing
their voice due to the public, private partnership agreements.

OLD BUSINESS:

HDOT Farrington Highway Corridor Study – Marshall Ando, Mellissa White, Jared Cheng and Pua Burgess:
 Farrington Highway raised crosswalk concerns: Resident Briece again noted her concerns about marking

the raised crosswalks better. Ando noted that the crosswalks are made to the National standards but will
look into again.

 Reason for Presentation: Ando noted that HDOT has completed their study and is now attending Board
meetings to get feedback of what the community wants to see as far as improvements. Ando noted that
they are attending all the Neighborhood Board general meetings as well as the Boards’ Transportation
committee meetings. Ando also noted that HDOT is also meeting with Homeowner’s Associations and
Homestead Associations along the corridor.



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 10

 Kahu Malama Alaloa Pathways Program (KMAPP): Ando noted the Pilot project that is part of the corridor
study noting that the Kahu Malama Alaloa Pathways Program (KMAPP) is designed to teach high school
students from the Nanakuli and Wai’anae Coast how to become a Kahu Malama Kealaloa, or Steward of
Pathways. The students will gather data and stories about community relationships with Farrington
Highway, and analyze the results of that data to identify issues, ideas, and solutions for the corridor. The
input and stories will inform the project team’s understanding of the area and development of solutions that
will address traffic safety, congestion, and resilience for present and future users of Farrington Highway.
Ando noted that if this program is successful, HDOT will implement this program in other areas.

 Project Overview: Jared Cheng noted that he is a highway planner for SSFM International which has been
hired by HDOT and works in their highways planning division, Cheng also noted that he lives in Ewa Beach
and works in Honolulu and started this project about one (1) year ago and has been collecting data and
doing traffic counts using due diligence and research. Cheng noted that they are ready to launch the
community engagement part of the study and is looking forward to meeting with the boards. Cheng noted
that this project covers the corridor from Nanakuli to Makaha and is looking at the planning horizon of 20
years and what the needs will be at that time but also noted that scheduled to be completed by the middle
of 2020 and hopes to get a final recommendation that includes the community’s feedback.

 Public Engagement: Mellissa White noted that she is assisting in organizing the public engagement part of
this study and has enlisted the help of community member Pua Burgess. White noted that this corridor goes
through several communities and serves many different purposes which is being considered in this study
and that is why they are reaching out to all the communities to see what their needs are to develop solutions.
White noted that they are doing the traditional outreach through the affected neighborhood boards and
community meetings which will begin in early 2020 where they will share study results and gather
community input of how your community uses the highway. White noted that there will also be a survey
taken and the results of that and the community input will be shared a few months later. White noted that
HDOT and SSFM will take all of that data and see what is needed and possible and come back to the
community with the draft. White also noted that besides the traditional methods of outreach, they will also
be using some online tools as well.

 Pua Burgess and KMAPP: Burgess noted that HDOT asked her to facilitate community meetings which she
was not willing to do but the KMAPP idea was suggested by her grandchild while they were stuck in traffic.
Burgess noted that her grandchild asked “what can she do” to help the traffic which gave her the idea to
engage students from Waianae High School (WHS) and Nanakuli High School (NHS) to work on this study
along with HDOT personnel and engineers to be part of the solution. Burgess noted that by engaging young
people in this study, hopefully those same young people will be stay engaged in other community projects.
Burgess noted that this project could open up the possibility to the students that they may be interested in
engineering or planning careers. Burgess asked the community leaders to help to guide and encourage
young people to take up the roll of community leaders.

 Two (2) Basic Things: Ando noted that what this study wants to do is to determine what would be the best
way to manage this corridor for everyone to keep the safe and to reduce congestion and also to involve the
community who live and use the highway including the young people in this process.

Questions, comments, concerns:
1. Work with Transportation Committee: Chair Poe asked that HDOT would commit to working with the Board’s

Transportation committee because this is an ongoing project and that a lot of congestion happens prior to
Nanakuli and also asked Ando to work with the committee on their suggestions for alleviating traffic beyond
the corridor.

2. Presentation: Vice Chair Riley thanked Ando for the improvements to the raised crosswalks on Farrington
Highway and noted that he is the Chair of the Transportation committee and the Oahu Metropolitan Planning
Organization (OMPO) representative for the Board. Riley noted that he, along with other Board and
community members made a presentation at the last OMPO meeting on a plan that ran from Makakilo to
Kaena Point that won first place.

3. Waianae Charter School: Board member Perry suggested that HDOT considers Leeward Community
College Waianae (LCCW) in the study along with charter schools in Waianae. Burgess noted conversations
with the administrators from LCCW and teachers from the high schools who has already received
applications from students who are interested in being part of this study.

4. Economic Reasons: Board member Perry noted her concerns that this study and proposed improvements
are being done more for economic reasons than for the community.

5. Holistic Approach: Board member Meinster noted praised the KMAPP program in how it will engage the
youth and give the students opportunities to learn valuable skills noting this is a win-win situation. Meinster
noted the proposal that was submitted to OMPO by the board and shared his concern that the HDOT study
does not take into consideration traffic prior to Nanakuli and after Makaha Beach and feels that a more



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 8 OF 10

holistic approach is needed to address concerns outside of the study. Meinster noted that the roads from
East Kapolei all the way out to Ka’ena Point needs to be considered and there needs to be a plan to
prioritize the most needed improvements.

6. Hostages: Board member Wahilani noted growing up in Nanakuli when there was not as many residents
along the coast when traffic was not too bad but since the development of new homes and the growing
traffic problems, he and other residents feels like hostages in their own Aina. Wahilani thanked HDOT for
looking for the needs 20 years into the future but wishes someone had that same vision years ago to have
prevented this problem in the first place. Ando noted that HDOT has spent over $200 million in
improvements along the corridor in recent years and are still looking for “low hanging fruits” which will be
of high value within a short time frame.

7. Crosswalk Improvements: Board member Endo thanked Ando for the crosswalk improvements which
makes it better for smaller cars but does not want to see any further improvements because larger vehicles
like trucks are back to speeding and just “flying over” the ramps.

8. Students are Ready: Board member Endo noted that many students are civic minded and are ready and
excited to be part of this study. White noted that a university student will be assisting in working with the
students and the teacher that will be leading the program is from Makaha who just received his PHD is
engineering.

8:40 p.m. Board member Cabral left the meeting. There are now seven (7) Board members in attendance.

9. OMPO Study: Vice Chair Riley noted their study for OMPO is the Leeward Coast Transportation Study
10. Gratitude: Vice Chair Riley noted his gratitude for HDOT’s cooperation in doing all that they can to help

improve the traffic situation on the Leeward Coast.
11. Not so Negative: Resident Robin Hermance noted attending a meeting that HDOT showed that they are

really working hard to do improvements and she is not so negative anymore.
12. Many Factors: Board member Jury noted that he hopes that the study will consider all the factors of traffic

including the impact of tourists, the military, new developments, government projects and any other
unforeseen circumstances.

13. Leihoku Street and Farrington Highway: Board member Perry noted her concern with a road treatment in
this area that may be hazardous.

14. Stop Development: Resident Manaku noted his role as the transportation chair of the Waianae Board in the
1980’s and feels that the only solution to relieve traffic along Farrington Highway is to stop any further
development in Waianae until another highway or access road is built.

15. Viaduct: Resident Allosada suggested that a viaduct could be built along Farrington Highway with off ramps
to the different communities, so those who are going passed Nanakuli or Maili can surpass the traffic.

16. Clarifying “Engaging the Community”: Resident Robin McDonald noted sharing her concerns with HDOT
about the traffic problems along the Leeward Coast and asked how HDOT is going to engage the
community for this study. White again noted that HDOT and SSFM will be working digitally and in person
through the neighborhood boards and community meetings and has already made a list of stakeholders
including homestead and homeowner associations. White also again noted the proposed digital survey
including an online interactive maps application. White noted coming back to the communities in March
2020 to share the data gathered and meetings after March 2020 that will state the recommendations made
from the all of the information. Chair Poe asked White to please email her information regarding those
meetings so it could be included as an agenda announcement.

17. How Long and End Product: Chair Poe asked how long is this study/project supposed to run and what will
happen when the study is completed and what if the community is not satisfied with the results. White noted
that this study should be concluded in about one (1) year noting they have been working on the study for a
while prior to the now community engagement portion of the project. White noted that HDOT and SSFM
started in September 2019 taking community feedback and will run that period to May 2020 and the end
product will be the “Corridor Study Report” that will identify the priority improvements for short, medium and
long term projects that will improve safety and relieve congestion along the corridor. Cheng noted that the
final product will summarize everything gathered during the public engagement process and also noted that
SSFM will be developing cost estimates for each project recommended in the final report and also
identifying any restraints associated with the projects such as environmental and other concerns.

18. Funding: Chair Poe asked about the funding for the project. Ando noted this study will help to justify and
obtain the funding needed for the improvements.

19. Proactive: Resident Alana noted that she is excited that Aunty Pua Burgess is involved in this project who
will keep everyone on task and she is excited that this project will involve the children of the Leeward Coast.
Alana suggested projects that can be “adopted” by community members to be a demonstration of what can
be done through community involvement. Alana also noted that the study does not seem to include any



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 9 OF 10

disaster situations but feels that is a fixable concern. Ando noted that HDOT appreciates the community’s
willingness to get involved in this project and is excited to be working with the high school students to give
them first-hand experience of working on a project whether it is funded or not.

20. Already Giving Feedback: Board member Meinster noted that HDOT and SSFM has already been given
feedback from this meeting and referred to the “Leeward Coast Transportation Study” presented to OMPO
that should be taken into consideration as part of a holistic approach to solving the traffic problem along the
whole Leeward Coast. Meinster noted his concern with the proposed possible developments of thousands
of homes in Makaha which will not be able to be accommodated with the current infrastructure. Ando noted
that they are taking all of the recommendations and feedback from tonight’s meeting and will include it in
their study’s data. Ando also noted that they are meeting with the Transportation committees for the affected
Boards and are being as transparent as possible in all they are doing.

21. Traffic Light Synchronization: Board member Endo noted his concern with the traffic light synchronization
problem and asked how HDOT can improve the synchronization of traffic lights from Nanakuli to Makaha.
Chair Poe noted that if HDOT cannot do something that the community requests, an explanation of why
would be highly appreciated.

9:30 p.m. The Neighborhood Assistant left the meeting. Further minutes were submitted by Secretary Perry.

Governor David Ige’s Representative – Director Aila reported the governor’s capital improvement projects:
 Aloha Stadium redevelopment the plans of a new 35,000 seat stadium in Halawa. The new stadium will be

part of a mixed-use project, including retail stores, residential buildings and other entertainment venues.
Next, the $3.2 billion State-wide airport modernization of the state’s 15-airport system. The ultimate goal
for the state’s airport system is to develop ‘world-class facilities.’ Lastly, the Hawai’i State Hospital facility
construction on a new 144-bed building at the Hawai’i State Hospital in Kāne’ohe slated for completion by 
the end of 2020. The public is invited to Washington Place Christmas open house on Friday, December 20,

2019 from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.
 Newsletter – New DHHL rules signed by Governor Ige. The new rules will give the Hawaiian Home Lands

beneficiaries residential lease options such as multifamily housing, rental units and Kupuna opportunities.
An affordable rental projects in Mō’ili’ili is planned to be the first developed under the new guidelines. For 
more go to the governor’s website at governor.hawaii.gov

 Solar Farms – Kapua Keliikoa-Kamai concern of public health & safety of removal and disposal of
replacement solar panels. Bond clause written in the initial contract. Aila - Solar farm in Kalaeloa bond built
in but the solar farm business is now no longer in business. Poe inquired about solar farm project on private
property. Aila – Windmill farm built 30 years ago on South Point on private property.

 Ulu Kukui Units – Kapua Keliikoa-Kamai concern of the status of Ulu Kukui units in Maili. Aila – reported
that units is currently rental units and will be managed by Catholic Charities.

 TMT – Kapua Keliikoa-Kamai continues to express her opposition of the Thirty Meter Telescope on Mauna
Kea.

 Homelessness – Resident express frustration of the homeless unsanitary behaviours. Ongoing clean-ups
by the community, city and state agencies and the homeless returns back to the beaches after it has been
cleared and cleaned.

State Senator Maile Shimabukuro, Senate District 21: Senator Shimabukuro highlighted her December 2019
newsletter:

 DOE - Workforce Development Diploma Program - The State DOE will no longer offer the Competency
Based Community Schools Diploma Program. Instead, it offers the Workforce Development Diploma
Program (WDDP). The WDDP is designed to provide an opportunity for adults without a high school diploma
to gain the knowledge, skills, and abilities to enter the workforce with the necessary basic education needed
for employment and/or specific job training.

 Transportation – Abandoned vehicles: Add more personal identifying information to car registration to
improve the ability to locate current/prior owners of abandon vehicles. Senator Shimabukuro/Rep. Gates
& Rep. Eli support HDOT car rental surcharge. Poe encouraged that the Senator support funding for the
Farrington Highway Corridor project.

 Consumer Protection – Yo-Yo Financing: Prohibit the practice of conditional financing (aka “Yo-Yo”
financing) by car dealerships. This practice has caused people to unexpectedly lose both their new and
trade-in cars, or be coerced into high-interest loans that they cannot afford.

 Hawaiian Affairs-DHHL – 1) DHHL Independent Counsel: Allows DHHL to hire independent counsel for
legal matters particularly in those with a potential conflict of interest with the State of Hawaii. 2) Hawaiian
Lands in Hawaiian Hands: A 2020 Resolution urging DHHL to make recommendations on how to better
keep Hawaiian Home Lands in Hawaiian hands. 3) Establishes the Micro-Enterprise Assistance Program



WAIANAE COAST NEIGHBORHORHOOD BOARD NO. 24 TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 10 OF 10

on Hawaiian Homelands Revolving Fund to provide grants/loans to qualified beneficiaries, native Hawaiian-
controlled homestead associations, and homestead association community development corporations. Jury
expressed to the Senator strengthened Hawaiians water and land rights.

 Office of Hawaiian Affairs – 1) OHA-Elections-Public Funding: Amend the maximum amount of public funds
available to each candidate running for public office to a specific percentage of the expenditure limit
established for each election. 2) Amend ballot requirements to display candidate for trustees of OHA with
the greatest degree of randomization feasible. 3) Requires that two of the four At-Large OHA board of
trustees to have a rural district residency requirement while the other two At-Large board of trustees be
from an urban district.

State Representative Cedric Gates, House District 44: Representative Gates sends his “Holiday Wishes.” He
supports funding for the Farrington Highway Corridor study/project.

State Representative Stacelynn Eli, House District 43: Report from November 2019 newsletter:
 Clean-Up - Rep. Eli is thankful for all the community leaders, volunteers, the City & County of Honolulu,

and the Nānākuli Neighborhood Watch patrol who came out to clean-up their community and beaches. The 
volunteers collected 400 lbs. of trash while the City removed bulky items and repaired the restrooms.
Nānākuli Neighborhood Watch patrol helps keep our community safe during their monthly patrol. 

 Finance Committee – Rep. Eli visited DAR AFCR that produces sea urchin in their hatchery tanks. Rep. Eli
visited HPS Foods that manufacture poi from the taro which is sold in our local markets. Rep. Eli visited La
Tour Cafe’ which bakes their own bread and other bake goods.

 Business – Rep. Eli and Rep. Val Okimoto met with employees of Ball Corporation located in her district.
The corporation produces aluminium cans which is used in Hawai’i. Rep. Eli visited Schnitzer Steel and
learned about their recycling process. The company ships metal to 27 countries, and ships off-island 120-
125 tons of metal a year.

 Land Use Commission – Rep. Eli invited Dan Orodenker, Land Use Commission Executive Officer to speak
to the community about the LUC functions, purpose, and overall operations of the Land Use Commission
office.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

 The next regular meeting of the Wai’anae Neighborhood Board No. 24 is 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, January 7,
2020 at the Wai’anae District Park Multi-Purpose Room.

Submitted by: Naomi Hanohano, Neighborhood Assistant
Reviewed by: Jackson Coley, Public Relations Specialist.


